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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT F

M IDDI.F DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
TAMPA DIVISION

Case No.: 1% It- \1Vt
BARBARA A. KOCII. on behall'ol herself
and others similarly situated,

Plaintiff.

VS.

CREDENCE RESOURCE MANAGEMENT.

LLC.

De felldalit

Class Action

Jury Trial Demanded

Nature of this Action

I. liarbaa A. Koch (-Plaintiff) brings this class action against Credence Resource

Management, Hi' ("Delimdanr) undo. the felephone Consumer Protection Act rICPA''), .47

227, and the Fair Debt CoHection Pnictices Act ("FDCRAM 15 U.S.C. 1692d.

2. Section 227( bm 1 )i A of the TCPA sets forth restrictions on the use ofautomated

telephone equipment and artificial or prerecorded voice calls, and provides in pertinent part:

It shall be unlawful for any person within the United States, or any person outside the
United States 0-the recipient is within the I 'oiled States-

(A) to make aily call toilicr than a call made for emergency purposes or made
with the prior express consent of the called party) using any automatic
telephone dialing system or an artificial or prerecorded voice—

tin to triy teiephone Mirriber assigned to u paging service_ cellular telephone
service. specialized mobile radio service. or other radio common carrier
service. or iity service for which the called party is charged for the call.
unless such call is made solely to collect a debt owed to or guaranteed by the
1..;nited StittesH
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3. Upon information and belief, Defendant routinely violates the TCPA by placing non-

emergency telephone calls to consumers' cellular telephone numbers by using an automatic

telephone dialing system or an artificial or prerecorded voice, without the prior express consent of

the consumers, in that Defendant routinely dials wrong or reassigned telephone numbers that do not

belong to the intended recipients of the calls.

4. Section 1692d of the FDCPA provides, in pertinent part: -A debt collector may not

engage in any conduct the natural consequence ofwhich is to harass, oppress, or abuse any person in

connection with the collection of a debt."

5. Upon information and good faith belief. Defendant routinely violates 15 U.S.C.

1692d by engaging in conduct the natural consequence of which is to harass, oppress, or abuse

consumers in connection with the collection ofdebts, in that it attempts to collect debts by repeatedly

dialing the wrong person.

Jurisdiction

6. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction under 47 U.S.C. 227(b)(3), 15 U.S.C.

1692k(d), and 28 U.S.C. 1331.

7. Venue is proper before this Court under 28 U.S.C. 1391(b), as Defendant transacts

business in this district, Plaintiff resides in this district, and as a substantial part of the events giving

rise to this action occurred in this district.

Parties

8. Plaintiff is a natural person who at all relevant times resided in Auburndale, Florida.

9. Plaintiff is a "consumer" as defined by 15 U.S.C. I 692E(3).

10. Defendant is a debt collection company based in Dallas, Texas.
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I I. Defendant states that it -provides best in class business solutions that help enhance

your service, compliance and recovery goals."

12. Defendant states that it "deliver[s] outstanding results for our clients using a

combination of automated technology, sophisticated analytics and highly trained customer service

and credit professionals to yield the highest return on investment."2

13. Among the services Defendant offers is a "'Cell phone finder, which it describes as:

Cell Phone finder: The recent TCPA regulations has made this scrub mandatory for
all who is attempting to collect a debt. We collaborate with various leading data

providers to provide you with the most recent information if a phone is a cell phone.
The phone numbers are scrubbed against the databases of the service providers to

identify and flag them as cell phones. Burgeoning cell phone market has seen 55% to

65% of the phones been identified as cell phones for the bad debt portfolios.3

14. Defendant states on its website: "This is an attempt to collect a debt and any

information obtained will be used for that purpose."4

15. Defendant's website contains "Terms and Conditions, which include:

Contact authorization: I authorize Credence Resource management LLC and its
representatives to contact me by telephone, automatic dialing system or device,
email, mail, SMS, chat and/or through this website. I authorize that any attempt to

contact me may include, but is not limited to voice, prerecorded or artificial

messages, text or electronic messages and calls made by an automated or computer
directed telephone dialing system to any phone number or any cellular phone. I agree
that both the cell phone number(s), telephone number(s) and/or e-mail addresses that

http://credencerm.com/index.html#about (last visited Aug. 14, 2017).
2 http://credencerm.com/index.html#about (last visited Aug. 14, 2017) (Third party
collections).
3 http://credencerm.com/index.html#features (last visited Aug. 14, 2017) (Data Enhancement
Verification and Authentication (DEVA)).

4 http://credencerm.com/make-payment.html (last visited Aug. 14, 2017).

3
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provide to you are secure and cannot be listened to or viewed by unauthorized third
parties.'

16. Defendant is a -debt collector" as defined by 15 U.S.C. I 692a(6).

Factual Allegations

17. In an attempt to contact a third party unknown to Plaintiff named "Shamika Manuel"

for the purpose ofattempting to collect a debt in default, Defendant placed numerous calls to cellular

telephone number (863) 595-xxxx—a number for which Plaintiff is the subscriber and customary

user.

18. Defendant began placing calls to Plaintiff in approximately April 2017.

19. By way ofexample, Defendant placed a call to Plaintiff's cellular telephone number

on June 6. 2017.

20. Upon information and good faith belief. Defendant's records will show additional

calls it placed to Plaintiff's cellular telephone number by using an automatic telephone dialing

system.

21. Defendant placed its calls to Plaintiff's cellular telephone number from (844) 475-

9281—a telephone number assigned to Defendant.

22. Defendant placed all of the above-referenced calls in an effbrt to contact and collect a

debt allegedly owed by a third party named Shamika Manuel, unknown to Plaintiff:

23. Upon information and good faith belief, and in light of the number, character and

nature of the calls, Defendant placed its calls to Plaintiff's cellular telephone number using an

automatic telephone dialing system, as defined by 47 U.S.C. 227(a)(1).

http://www.apsrnemberservices.corn/apswebforms/client/Credenceiindex.html? (last visited
Aug. 18, 2017).

4
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24. Upon information and good faith belief, and in light of the number, character and

nature of the calls, Defendant placed its calls to Plaintiff's cellular telephone number by using (a)

equipment which has the capacity (i) to store or produce telephone numbers to be called, using a

random or sequential number generator, and (ii) to dial such numbers, or (b) technology with the

capacity to dial random or sequential numbers, or (c) hardware, software, or equipment that the FCC

characterizes as an automatic telephone dialing system through the following, and any related,

declaratory ruling and order: In the Matter qf'Rules and Regulations Implementing the Telephone

Consumer Protection Act of1991, FCC 15-72 (adopted June 18, 2015 and released July 10, 2015).

25. Upon information and good faith belief, and in light of the number, character and

nature of the calls, Defendant placed its calls to Plaintiff's cellular telephone number by using (a) an

automated dialing system that uses a complex set of algorithms to automatically dial consumers'

telephone numbers in a manner that -predicts" the time when a consumer will answer the phone and

a person will be available to take the call, or (b) equipment that dials numbers and, when certain

computer software is attached, also assists persons in predicting when a sales agent will be available

to take calls, or (c) hardware, that when paired with certain software, has the capacity to store or

produce numbers and dial those numbers at random, in sequential order, or from a database of

numbers, or (d) hardware, software, or equipment that the FCC characterizes as a predictive dialer

through the following, and any related, reports and orders, and declaratory rulings: In the Matter qf

Rules a»d Regulations Implementing the Telephone Consumer Protection Act of 1991, I 7 FCC Red

17459, 17474 (September 18, 2002); In the Matter of Rules and Regulations Implementing the

Telephone Consumer Protection Act of 1991, 18 FCC Red 14014, 14092-93 (July 3, 2003); In the

Matter ofRules and Regulations Implenwnting the Telephone Consumer Protection Act qf1991. 23

FCC Rcd 559, 566 (Jan. 4, 2008); In the Matter of Rules and Regulations Implementing the

5
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Telephone Consumer Protection Act of 1991, FCC 15-72 (adopted June 18, 2015 and released July

10, 2015).

26. As touted on its website. Defendant utilizes hardware and software with the capacity

to store telephone numbers and to dial such numbers sequentially, predictively, or randomly, and to

dial telephone numbers without human intervention.

27. Upon information and good faith belief Defendant used such hardware and software

to place the calls at issue to Plaintiff s cellular telephone number.

28. Defendant did not have Plaintiffs prior express consent to make any calls to her

cellular telephone number.

29. Rather, Defendant was attempting to reach a third party who is unknown to Plaintiff,

for the purpose of collecting a debt in default.

30. Plaintiff never provided her cellular telephone number to Defendant.

31. Plaintiff never had any business relationship with Defendant.

32. Defendant did not place any calls to Plaintiffs cellular telephone number for

emergency purposes.

33. Defendant placed its calls to Plaintiffs cellular telephone number under its own free

will.

34. Upon information and good faith belief, Defendant placed the calls at issue to

Plaintiff willfully and knowingly in that it consciously and deliberately made the calls referenced

herein.

35. Upon information and good faith belief, Defendant had knowledge that it was using,

and intended to use, an automatic telephone dialing system to place the calls at issue to Plaintiff.

6



Case 8:17-cv-01981-JSM-AEP Document 1 Filed 08/21/17 Page 7 of 11 PagelD 7

36. Plaintiff suffered harm as a result of Defendant's telephone calls to her cellular

telephone number in that she suffered an invasion of her privacy, an intrusion into her life, and a

private nuisance.

37. Additionally, the unwanted calls at issue unnecessarily tied up Plaintiff s cellular

telephone line.

Class Action Allegations

38. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure

23(a) and (b) on behalf of herself and two classes of similarly situated individuals:

TCPA Class

All persons and entities throughout the United States to whom Credence
Resource Management, LLC placed, or caused to be placed, more than one call (2)
directed to a number assigned to a cellular telephone service, but not assigned to the
intended recipient of Credence Resource Management, LLC's calls—in that the
intended recipient of the calls was not a customary user of, or subscriber to, the

telephone number, by (3) using an automatic telephone dialing system or an artificial
or prerecorded voice, (4) from four years prior to the filing of the complaint through
and including the date of class certification.

Debt Collection Class

All persons and entities throughout the United States (1) to whom Credence
Resource Management, LLC placed, or caused to be placed, calls, (2) from one year
prior to the date of this complaint through and including the date of class
certification, (3) and in connection with the collection of a consumer debt that the
called party did not owe.

Excluded from the classes are Detimdant, its officers and directors, members of their immediate

families and their legal representatives, heirs, successors, or assigns, and any entity in which

Defendant has or had a controlling interest.

39. The proposed classes arc so numerous that, upon information and belief, joinder ofall

members is impracticable.

7
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40. The exact number of members of the classes is unknown to Plaintiffat this time and

can only be determined through appropriate discovery.

41. The proposed classes are ascertainable because they are defined by reference to

objective criteria.

42. In addition, and upon information and belief, the cellular telephone numbers of all

members of the classes can be identified in business records maintained by Defendant and third

parties.

43. Plaintiff's claims are typical of the claims ofthe members ofthe classes because all of

the class members' claims originate from the same conduct, practice and procedure on the part of

Defendant, and Plaintiffpossesses the same interests and has suffered the same injuries as each class

member.

44. Like all members of the proposed TCPA Class, Plaintiffreceived telephone calls from

Defendant using an automatic telephone dialing system at a wrong or reassigned cellular telephone

number, without her consent, in violation of 47 U.S.C. 227.

45. Further, like all members of the proposed Dcbt Collection Class, Plaintiff received

telephone calls from Defendant in connection with the collection ofa consumer debt that she did not

owe.

46. Plaintiffwill fairly and adequately protect the interests ofthe members of the classes

and has retained counsel experienced and competent in class action litigation.

47. Plaintiff has no interests that arc irrevocably contrary to or in conflict with the

members of the classes that she seeks to represent.

48. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient

adjudication of this controversy, since joinder of all members is impracticable.

8
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49. Furthermore, as the damages suffered by individual members of the classes may be

relatively small, the expense and burden of individual litigation make it impracticable for the

members of the classes to individually redress the wrongs done to them.

50. There will be little difficulty in the management of this action as a class action.

51. Issues of law and fact common to the members of the classes predominate over any

questions that may affect only individual members, in that Defendant has acted on grounds generally

applicable to each class.

52. Among the issues of law and fact common to the classes are:

a. Defendant's violations of the TCPA:

b. Defendant's violations of the FDCPA;

c. Defendant's use of an automatic telephone dialing system as defined by the TCPA;

d. Defendant's practice of making calls to wrong or reassigned cellular telephone

numbers;

e. Defendant's practice of attempting to collect debts that consumers do not owe;

f. Defendant's status as a debt collector as defined by the FDCPA; and

g. the availability of statutory damages.

53. Absent a class action. Defendant's violations of the law will be allowed to proceed

without a full, fair, judicially supervised remedy.

Count I: Violations of 47 U.S.C. 227(b)(I)(A)(iii)

54. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every factual allegation contained in

paragraphs 1 53.

55. Defendant violated 47 U.S.C. 227(b)(1)(A )(iii) by utilizing an automatic telephone

dialing system to place telephone calls to Plaintifrs cellular telephone number, without her consent.

9
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56. As a result of Defendant's violations of 47 U.S.C. 227(b)(1)(A)(iii), Plaintiff and

the TCPA Class are entitled to damages in an amount to be proven at trial.

Count H: Violations of 15 U.S.C. 1692d

57. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every factual allegation contained in

paragraphs 1 53.

58. Defendant violated 15 U.S.C. 1692d by engaging in conduct the natural

consequence of which is to harass, oppress, or abuse Plaintiff in connection with the collection of

consumer debts.

59. Defendant did so by repeatedly dialing Plaintifis cellular telephone number for the

purpose of attempting to collect a debt that Plaintiff did not owe.

Jury Trial Demanded

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief and judgment, as follows:

(a) Determining that this action is a proper class action and designating Plaintiff

as class representative under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure;

(b) Adjudging that Defendant violated 47 U.S.C. 227(b)( )(A)(iii), and

enjoining Defendant from continuing to place calls to Plaintiff s cellular telephone number, from

placing calls to consumers' cellular telephone numbers by using an automatic telephone dialing

system or an artificial or prerecorded voice without thc prior express consent of the consumers, and

from committing further violations of 47 U.S.C. 227(b)(1)(A)(iii);

(c) Adjudging that Defendant violated 15 U.S.C. 1692d, and enjoining

Defendant from further violations of 15 U.S.C. 1692d with respect to Plaintiff and the other

members of the Debt Collection Class;

10



Case 8:17-cv-01981-JSM-AEP Document 1 Filed 08/21/17 Page 11 of 11 PagelD 11

(d) Awardino Plaintiff and luenthers of the TUFA Class actual damaues or

statutory damages under 47 U.S.C. 227(h)(3) in an amount up to S1, 500.00 per violation:

(e) Awarding Plaintiff and menthers of the Debt Collection Class statutory

damaQes under the FDCPA:

Awardin,,k, Plaintiff and inembers of the classes their reasonable costs.

expenses, including expert fees, and attorneysfees incurred in this action. under 15 U.S.C. I 692k

and Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure: and

(L) Awardino other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

Dated: August 18. 2017 ..Vfichael L. Greenwrihl

Michael L. Greenwald
James L. Davidson
Jesse S. Johnson
GRFENWALD DAVIDSON RADBIL PLLC
5550 Glades Road. Suite 500
Uoca Raton, FL 33431

Telephone: 561.526.5477
Fax; 561.961.5684
murcenwalthit.gdrlawlirm.com

jdayidsonv alrlawlirm.com

jjohnsona gdrlawlirm.com

.Aaron D. Radbil
GRFFNWALD DAVIDSON RADBI1_ P1.LC
106 F. 6th Street. Suite 913
Austin. •X 78701

Telephone: 512.322.3912

aradbkr eclrlawfirm.coin

Counsel for Plainti CI and the proposed classes
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CIVIL COVER sliFFT

This autommed JS-44 conforms eenerally to the manual JS-44 •pproed by the Judicial Conference of the t nited States in September
1974. The data is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of iniIoniii the civil docket sheet. lhe information contained
herein neither replaces nor supplements the fiIin mod service of pleadings or other papers as required by law.

Plaintiff(s): Defendant(s):

Barbara A Koch; Credence Resource Manatement. I.I.0:
County of Residence: Polk County County of Residence: Outside This Distriet

County Where Claim For Relief Arose: Polk County

Plaintiff's Attorney(s): Defendant's Attorney(s):
Michael L Greenwald (Barbara Koch)
Greenwald Davidson Radbi] PLI.0
5550 Glades Road. Suite 500
Boca Raton, Florida 33431
Phone: 561-826-5477
FaN: 561-961-5684 Ti

Email: ingreenwald(ogdrlawfirm.com c

Basis of Jurisdiction: 3. Federal Question L.S. not a party)

Citizenship of Principal Parties (Diversity ('ases Only)
Plaintiff: N/A

Defendant: N./A

Origin: I. Original Proceeding.

Nature of Suit: 890 Other Statutory Actions
Cause of Action: Violations of the Telephone Consumer Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. 227. and the Fair Debt
Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. 1692d

Requested in Complaint
(lass .-Action: Class Action Loder FRCP-23

:klorietary Demand (ill Thousands):

Jury Demand: Yes

Related Cases: Is NOT a l'efilint.t of a previously dismissed action

Signature: Michael L. Greenwald

Date: Auflust 18, 2017
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